
PROCUREMENT OF OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR THE
NEW CLARK CITY SPORTS COMPLEX, NCC, TARLAC

BID BULLETIN NO. BAC-G-OM 2021- 002

This Bid Bulletin clarifies the additional queries sent through e-mail by prospective bidders and
raised during the ocular inspection, as well as, other matters relative to the Procurement of
Operation and Maintenance Services for the New Clark City Sports Complex, NCC, Tarlac.

A. CLARIFICATION ON MATTERS RELATED TO THE BIDDING DOCUMENTS:

Queries Clarification/s

1. Can you provide a list of Equipment,
including the specifications and
quantity?

Please refer to Annex “A” for the list of
minimum required tools and equipment for
the operations and maintenance services.

2. What are the detailed scope and
inclusions for the Equipment Preventive
Maintenance?

The detailed scope and Inclusions for the
Equipment Preventive Maintenance are
specified and enumerated in the Minimum
Performance Standards and Specifications of
the Bidding Documents

3. What is the schedule of the preventive
maintenance for the equipment in the
NCC Sports Complex? Will it be up to
fifty-two(52) weeks?

The detailed scope and inclusions (including
the schedule) for the Equipment Preventive
Maintenance are specified and enumerated
in the Minimum Performance Standards and
Specifications of the Bidding Documents.

4. Per site due diligence, all equipment are
still under warranty. Please clarify if the
periodic preventive maintenance will still
be part of the scope and proposal cost
since the assumption is that the Original
Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) are
still responsible for it.

Yes, the periodic preventive maintenance will
still be part of the scope and proposal.

The list of equipment with its corresponding
date of warranty is attached as Annex “B”.

5. Who are the current vendors  handling
the preventive maintenance of the
facility equipment in the Sports Sports
Complex?

The current Operation & Maintenance
Service Provider of the NGAC Phase 1 Joint
Venture handles the preventive maintenance
of all facility equipment within the NCC
Sports Complex, including the River Park
Corridor. Further, the O&M Service Provider



currently hired the following third-party
contractors with the following specific
functions:

A. Alpha Pool Inc. - Cleaning and Water
Testing of the Competition Pool,
Diving Pool, and Training Pool at the
NCC Aquatic Center;

B. ESports International, Inc. -
Preventive Maintenance of Sports
Equipments;

C. IFE Elevators Philippines, Inc. -
Preventive Maintenance of Elevators;
and

D. Rockspeed - Preventive Maintenance
of PWD Lifts

E. AMIGO Entertainment Technologies,
Inc. - Preventive Maintenance of
Scoreboard, Audio Equipment, Timing
and Scoring Equipment and Systems
of the Sports Facilities

6. What is the frequency of the preventive
maintenance?

The detailed scope and Inclusions for the
Equipment Preventive Maintenance are
specified and enumerated in the Minimum
Performance Standards and Specifications of
the Bidding Documents.

7. Please clarify if the consumables
(electrical supplies, lights, maintenance
supplies, painting materials and supplies,
civil supplies, etc.) is part of the proposal
cost or if BCDA will provide it. If yes, may
we request for the historical date of the
items usually consumed.

Yes, consumables will be part of the proposal
cost of the O&M Service Provider. For the list
of minimum required supplies and
consumables, please refer to Annex “C”.

8. If the supply of lighting is part of the
scope, may we request for the model
and specification of lights deployed at
the complex?

For the electrical requirements of the
facilities, please refer to the As-Built Electrical
Plan of the NCC Sports Facilities attached as
Annex “D”.

9. Since AC System parts and electrical &
electronic supplies are included in the

For the electrical requirements of the
facilities, please refer to the As-Built Electrical



scope, may we request the list of parts
and historical data?

Plan of the NCC Sports Facilities attached as
Annex “D”.

10. Does BCDA require Professional Electrical
Engineer (PEE) or Professional
Mechanical Engineer (PME) for this
project?

CLARIFICATION / CORRECTION:

Please note that we have revised the
Qualification Requirements of the DEPUTY
FACILITIES MANAGER:

● Must be a Licensed Engineer (Civil,
Mechanical, Electrical) or equivalent,
with at least 5 years’ experience in
facilities management.

For the Facility Maintenance Services, BCDA
requires the following Facility Engineers:

A. One (1) Mechanical Engineer;
B. One (1) Electrical Engineer; and
C. One (1) Electronics and

Communications Engineer.

The O&M Service Provider may decide to hire
services of a PEE or PME, at no additional
cost to BCDA.

Please refer to the corrected Bid Form
Templates attached in Annex “E” reflecting
revisions in the Minimum Required
Maintenance Personnel.

11. Will BCDA provide housing options for
the Property Management Team and its
assigned employees for the Operations
and Maintenance of the NCC Sports
Facilities?

Majority of the current employees of the
O&M Service Provider are residents of Capas
and Bamban, Tarlac. BCDA recommends for
the O&M Service Provider to hire the
majority of its personnel (including janitorial)
from the surrounding municipalities to avoid
issues on housing.

However, for the Nominated Key Personnel,
as they may primarily come from Metro
Manila, BCDA may allocate rooms within the



NCC Athletes’ Village for the lease of the
O&M Service Provider at:

A. Php 4,000/bed/month if 3 persons
stay in one (1)  room; or

B. Php 6,000/bed /month if 2 persons
stay in one (1)  room.

The room rate includes the cost of utilities.
The said lease rate will be subject to a
separate Contract between BCDA and O&M
Service Provider.

12. Will BCDA provide the office equipment
(including service vehicles) of the O&M
Service Provider?

No. The O&M Service Provider shall include
in its estimated cost their own office
equipment, including provision of their
service vehicles. BCDA will allocate an office
space within the NCC Sports Complex for the
O&M Service Provider, however, the cost of
utilities shall be shouldered by the O&M
Service Provider.

13. In Clause 2. Description of Services, Item
(d) of the Terms of Reference, can it be
clarified if the “Parks and Site
Development” includes the road
network? This information is crucial as
only one (1) gardener and six (6)
housekeeping personnel are deployed to
cover item 4.3 (d) of the Scope of
Services / Deliverables and Section 2, A.1
of the MPSS.

Yes. The Parks and Site Development covers
the road networks of the entire NCC Sports
Complex.

Please note that the Terms of Reference
require a minimum number of personnel to
be deployed in each facility. The O&M
Provider will be responsible in allocating the
number of personnel per facility, or
outsource the services, with budget provided
for in the Maintenance Services.

14. In Clause 4. Scope of Services /
Deliverables, Item 4.2. (c ) of the Terms
of Reference, it pertains to the
implementation of the BCDA-verified and
consented House Rules and Fit-Out
Guidelines. Is the O&M Service Provider
expected to draft the House Rules and
Guidelines or does BCDA already have
one?

The O&M Services Provider will draft the
house rules and Guidelines, in coordination
with the BCDA Corporate Services Group -
Procurement and Property Management
Group.



15. It is assumed that third party services
such as food catering, laundry, kitchen
and pantry amenities are for BCDA’s
account and will be settled directly with
the service providers. Please clarify.

The third party services, may be availed by
tenants during events or on as-needed basis
through the accredited services providers by
the O&M Service Provider.

The payment for these services shall not be
covered by BCDA and will be paid directly by
the tenants / events organizers.

16. In Clause 4. Scope of Services/
Deliverables, Item No. 4.2. (e), said scope
of services may need a full-time
accounting personnel considering the
number of financial reports required to
be submitted as enumerated in the
MPSS Section 1 (Operations) Section A,
Item 3, No. 7 (of column 4). It is
suggested that an additional accounting
supervisor and accounting clerk be
added to the roster of personnel. Please
clarify.

CLARIFICATION:

Please note the following  additional
maintenance personnel:

One (1) PROPERTY ACCOUNTANT:

Qualification Requirements:
● Must be a Certified Public

Accountant, with at least three (3)
years’ work experience

Duties and Responsibilities:
● Prepare financial reports for

submission to BCDA on costs incurred
in the operations and management
of the Property

● Perform other related duties as may
be required by BCDA

Please refer to the corrected Bid Form
Templates attached in Annex “E” reflecting
revisions in the Minimum Required
Maintenance Personnel.

17. It is suggested that a full-time Safety Officer
be added in the roster of personnel to carry
out this part of deliverables. Please clarify.

This deliverable may be performed by the
Deputy Facility Manager.

18. Please clarify Clause 4. Penalties-Item 2 of
the Minimum Performance Standards and
Specifications, Security/ safety services not
included in scope of work/ services to be
delivered.

Deletion of Clause 4, Item 2: Penalties -
Security / Safety Services in the Minimum
Performance Standards and Specifications
(MPSS) since the item is not covered by this



Procurement Contract.

19. Please clarify Clause 4. Penalties-Item 6
of the Minimum Performance Standards
and Specifications about the
un-sanctioned non-reporting of
personnel. What are the elements
governing un-sanctioned reporting?

Un-sanctioned reporting refers to
Unauthorised Absences or Absence Without
Approved Leave (AWOL).

Further,  if a  Facilities Manager goes on leave
without a reliever or Officer in Charge (OIC),
this tantamounts to AWOL.

20. Please clarify Clause 20.1
Post-qualification of Sec. II. Instructions
to Bidders since there is no ITB Clause
20.1 in the Bid Data Sheet.

No further instruction for this Clause.

21. Please clarify Clause 21.1
Post-qualification of Sec. II. Instructions
to Bidders since there is no ITB Clause
21.1 in the Bid Data Sheet.

No further instruction for this Clause.

22. Please clarify Section VIII. Checklist of
Technical and Financial Documents
regarding the course requirements of the
a) Administrative Assistant and
b) Receptionist to be hired for this
Project.

We refer to the O&M Service Provider in
hiring these personnel. They must possess at
least a Bachelor's / College Degree, preferably
in Business Administration, Management,
Mass Communication, and Hotel &
Restaurant Management (HRM).

The Minimum Qualification Requirement, as
stated in the Bid Documents, requires that
these personnel have at least three (3) years’
work experience.

23. Is there a form of Price Schedule for use
by the bidders in submitting their
proposals?

Yes, the Bid Form Templates are attached in
the Bid Bulletin No. BAC-G-OM2021-001.

24. Can you provide a copy of the Minutes of
the Pre-bid Conference on June 17, 2021
and the presentation materials for
additional reference in the preparation
of the bids?

Yes. Please refer to the following  Zoom Link
of the Pre-bid Conference on June 17, 2021:

Pre-Bid Conference ZOOM Link Recording

This serves as the mInutes of the Pre-bid
Conference. The presentation materials are



available via the google link:

Pre-Bid Conference Presentation Materials

We will send the materials to those who have
already purchased the bidding documents.
Further, for those who are interested to
participate in the bidding activities and want
to have a copy of these materials, please
send to us a written request via email, for
documentation purposes.

25. The audit of our financial statement for
2020 is still ongoing and will be
completed by the 3rd quarter of 2021. Can
we present the Audited Financial
Statements for 2019, also for purposes of
computing NFCC?

Yes. The bidder may submit Audited Financial
Statements, showing, among others, the
Bidder’s total and current assets and
liabilities, stamped “received” by the BIR or
its duly accredited authorized institutions, for
the preceding calendar year which should not
be earlier that two (2) years from the date of
bid submission and can be used for the
purposes of computing NFCC.  For this
project, Audited FS for the year ended 2019
or 2020 is acceptable.

B. CHANGE OF  SCHEDULE OF BIDDING ACTIVITIES:

Please be informed of the changes in the schedule of the following bidding activities for the
Procurement of Operations and Maintenance Services for the New Clark City Sports Complex,
NCC, Tarlac:

ACTIVITIES
From To

DATE/SCHEDULE DATE/SCHEDULE

Issuance of a Supplemental Bid Bulletin 06 July 2021
Submission of Bid Proposals 09:00 AM, 09 July 2021 09:00 AM, 13 July 2021

Opening of Bid Proposals 10:00 AM, 09 July 2021 10:00 AM, 13 July 2021

Bid Evaluation 12-13 July 2021 13-15 July 2021

Presentation of Detailed Bid Evaluation 11:00 AM, 15 July 2021 11:00 AM, 16 July 2021

The schedule of the remaining bidding activities for this project remains the same. The above
schedule amends the posted schedule in the BDS, accordingly.



This Supplemental Bulletin is being issued pursuant to Section 22.5 of Rule VII of the 2016
Revised Implementing Rules and Regulations of Republic Act 9184.

Please be reminded that all queries after the release of this Supplemental Bid Bulletin
will not be entertained.

All provisions, conditions and statements in the bidding documents inconsistent with
this Supplemental Bid Bulletin are either modified or rendered ineffective, as the case
may be.

Issued on 06 July 2021.

BIDS AND AWARDS COMMITTEE FOR GOODS

ARREY A. PEREZ
Chairperson



ANNEX A:
MINIMUM LIST OF TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT

EQUIPMENT QUANTITY

Electrical

1 Precision Screwdriver Set 2

2 Hexagon T Wrench (600v) 4

3 Electrical Plier (600v) 10" 1

4 Electrical Plier (600v) 12" 1

5 Cutting Plier 1

6 Long Nose Plier (600v) 1

7 Skinning Knife 1

8 Hack Saw 1

9 UNI T-Cable Tester 1

10 Clamp Tester 2

11 Fushion Machine 1

12 Heavy duty Rechargeable 1

13 Tape Measure (5m) 1

14 Infrared Thermo Gun 1

B Plumbing

1 Portable Hand Snake (Drain Auger) 1

2 Hand Snake (Full Drain) 1

3 PVC Cutter 1

4 Pipe Wrench 24 1

5 Pipe Wrench 12" 1

6 Pipe Wrench 8" 1

7 Pipe Pliers 1

8 Riveter 1

9 Pruning Shear, Small 1

10 Pruning Shear, Big 1

11 Chain Black 1



12 Claw Bar 1

13 Claw Hammer 1

C Mechanical

1 Socket Wrench (10-32) 16

2 Open Wrench (6-32) 16

3 Allen Wrench Small (1.5 - 10mm) 6

4 Allen Wrench Flower (long) 6

5 Allen Wrench Long 6

6 Hand Vice Grip (10R) 1

7 Chain or Strap Wrench 1

8 Mechanical Plier 1

9 Screw Driver Set (6 pcs.) 6

10 Grease Gun 1

11 Gauge Set for Bladder Tank 1

D Landscaping and Site Development

1 Wet and Dry Vacuum 10

2 Drill Bits (2 sets) 4

3 Garden Hose with Connector 2

4 Power Spray 1

5 Electric Sprayer 1

6 Manual Lawn Mower 1

7 Gas Lawn Mower 1

8 Snipper 1

9 Rake 2

10 Finishing Trowel 2

11 Trowel 1

12 Shovel 2

13 Chisel 1

14 Bolo Knife 1

15 Aluminum Telescopic Ladder 24s 1

16 Aluminum A Ladder 1



17 Brush Cutter 3

18 Two-Way Radios 15

19 Flexible Steel Leaf Rake 10

20 Wheelbarrow 4

21 Golf Cart 2

E Cleaning Supplies

1 Floor Polisher 10

2 Hand Trolley / Housekeeping Cart 10

3 Mop Squeezer 20

4 Soft Broom 70

5 Dust Pan 70

6 Trash Bin Cart 20

7 Mop Handle with Mop Head 70

8 Janitorial Belt Bag 70

9 Plastic Spray Gun 80

10 Toilet Plunger 10

11 Wet Floor Sign 20

12 Glass Cleaner (Squeegee) 50

13 Long Broom (for cobwebs) 30

14 Broomstick 40

15 Cleaning Supplies for Swimming Pool (Athletes' Village) 1



ANNEX B:
LIST OF EQUIPMENT AND WARRANTY PERIOD

CONTRACTOR /
DESCRIPTION

DATE OF
DELIVERY

YEARS OF
WARRANTY

DATE OF
EXPIRATION

A Hillmarc's Construction Corporation: Athletics Stadium

1 Transformer 24 September 2019 1 year 24 September 2020

2 Blower Motor 15 May 2019 1 year 15 May 2020

3 Elevator 6 September 2019 2 years 6 September 2021

4 Water Heater 1 September 2019 1 year 1 September 2020

5 Air Condition Units

Parts and Labor Warranty
Period 29 August 2019 1 year 29 August 2020

Compressor Warranty Period 29 August 2019 1 year 29 August 2020

8 Irrigation Pump 6 September 2019 18 months 6 March 2021

9 Booster Pump 6 September 2019 18 months 6 March 2021

10 Fire Pump & Jockey Pump 6 September 2019 18 months 6 March 2021

11
Medium Voltage Switchgear
1 & 2 12 September 2019 1 year 12 September 2020

12 PWD Lift 6 September 2019 2 year 6 September 2021

13 PA / BGM system 31 August 2019 1 year 31 August 2020

14 CCTV 31 August 2019 1 year 31 August 2020

15 Water Proofing 15 October 2019 2 years 15 October 2021

16 Painting 30 September 2019 2 years 30 September 2021

B Hillmarc's Construction Corporation: Aquatics Center

1 Transformer (MVSG) 12 September 2019 1 year 12 September 2020

2

Fire Pump & Jockey Pump,
Booster Pump and
Submersible Pump 6 September 2019 18 months 6 March 2021

3 Elevator 6 September 2019 2 years 6 September 2021

4 PWD Lift 6 September 2019 2 years 6 September 2021

Fire Detection and Alarm
System 21 September 2019 2 years 21 September 2021

PA / BGM System 21 September 2019 2 years 21 September 2021



Skimcoat, Sealer and
Painting Works 15 October 2019 2 years 15 October 2021

Steel Painting Works 24 July 2019 2 years 24 July 2021

Water Proofing Works 15 October 2019 2 years 15 October 2021

Pool Deck Tile Works 15 October 2019 2 years 15 October 2021

C Frey Fil Corporation: Athletes Village

1 Transformer 21 August 2019 1 year 21 August 2020

2 Elevator 18 months

3 Medium Voltage Switchgear 15 October 2019 1 year 15 October 2020

4 Blower Motor 7 September 2019 2 years 7 September 2021

5 FDAS and PA 14 September 2019 1 year 14 September 2020

6 Fire and Jockey Pumps 24 September 2019 1 year 24 September 2020

7 CCTV 1 October 2019 2 year 1 October 2021

8 VRF Air Con

Cassette Split 5 years

Ducted Split 5 years

Multi F& FDX Split 5 years

Multi V VRF 5 years

Ventilator 5 years

9 Generator Set

D Positive Builders: Roads and Drainage

1 Street Lighting 5 years

E AMIGO Entertainment Technologies, Inc.: Technical Equipments

1 Athletics Stadium

Scoreboard and Systems 15 August 2019 2 years 15 August 2021

Outline Audio Equipment and
Systems 15 August 2019 1 year 15 August 2020

Timing and Scoring
Equipment and System 15 August 2019 1 year 15 August 2020

2 Aquatics Center

Scoreboard and Systems 15 August 2019 2 years 15 August 2021



Outline Audio Equipment and
Systems 15 August 2019 1 year 15 August 2020

F ESPORTS International: Sports Equipments

Technogym Gym Equipment

Structural Frame 23 September 2019 10 years 23 September 2029

Treadmill motor and
Treadmill Absorption System 23 September 2019 10 years 23 September 2029

Electrical and Mechanical
Parts 23 September 2019 2 years 23 September 2021

Wearable Parts 23 September 2019 3 months 23 December 2019

Strength Equipment

Structural Frame 23 September 2019 10 years 23 September 2029

Moving Parts 23 September 2019 2 years 23 September 2021

Cables and Wearable Parts 23 September 2019 3 months 23 December 2019

Accessories

Replacement on factory
defects 1 week

Service 23 September 2019 2 years 23 September 2021

G Athletics Stadium Competition Track

Polytan M 31 August 2019 5 years 31 August 2024

H
Athletics Stadium
Equipment 23 September 2019 2 years 23 September 2021



ANNEX C:
LIST OF MINIMUM REQUIRED JANITORIAL AND MAINTENANCE

SUPPLIES ON STOCK

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY

1 Air Freshener gallons 20

2 Glass Cleaner gallons 50

3 Toilet Bathroom Cleaner gallons 50

4 All Purpose Cleaner gallons 35

5 Powder Soap pack 40

6 Metal Polish (100 grams) pcs 15

7 Hand soap gallons 35

8 Toilet roll Paper (12 pcs/pack) pack 190

9 Hand Paper Towel pack 100

10 Black Garbage Bag (small) pack 150

11 Black Garbage Bag (medium) pack 150

12 Black Garbage Bag (XXL) pack 80

13 Baby Oil (500 ML) pcs 10

14 Disinfectant gallons 50

15 Rubber Gloves pcs 100

16 Pranela pcs 300

17 Furniture Polish (Shine-Up) gallons 20

18 CR Rags pcs 100

19 Face Masks boxes 500

20 Rain Coats pcs 100

21 Rain Boots pcs 100

22 Cleaning Supplies for AV Swimming Pool lot 1



ANNEX D:
AS-BUILT PLANS (ELECTRIC)

NEW CLARK CITY SPORTS FACILITIES
(Separate Document)

Annex D.1: As-Built Plan Aquatics Center
Annex D.2: As-Built Plan Athletics Stadium
Annex D.3: As-Built Plan Athletes Village



ANNEX E:
REVISED BID FORMS

Annex E.1: Revised Appendix “4” Statement of Availability of Key Personnel
Annex E.2: Revised Appendix “5” Summary of Nominated Personnel
Annex E.3: Revised Appendix “10” Cost Structure for Each Position



Revised
APPENDIX “4”

STATEMENT OF AVAILABILITY OF KEY PERSONNEL

(Date of Issuance)

To: The Chairperson
Bids and Awards Committee for GOODS
BASES CONVERSION AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
BCDA Corporate Center
2/F Bonifacio Technology Center
31st street corner 2nd avenue
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

In compliance with the requirements of the BCDA Bids and Awards Committee for Goods for the
Procurement of the (Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Services of the New Clark City
Sports Complex) (“PROJECT”), we certify that (Name of the Bidder) has in its employ the
nominated key personnel, as follows:

1. (Name of Key Personnel) – Facilities Manager
2. (Name of Key Personnel) – Deputy Facilities Manager
3. (Name of Key Personnel) – Administrative Assistant
4. (Name of Key Personnel) – Facilities Engineer (Mechanical)
5. (Name of Key Personnel) – Facilities Engineer (Electrical)
6. (Name of Key Personnel) – Facilities Engineer (Electronics and Communications)

Very truly yours,

[Signature over Printed Name of Authorized Representative]
[Position]
[Name of Bidder]






